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IFB No. 1-14-C022 
Airports Authority Annual Report  

for the 
Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority 

 
Questions and Answers 
 
Notice: Questions may have been edited for clarity and relevance. 

1. Will the annual report also need to be online, therefore the artwork need to be 
provided in 2 formats? 

Answer:  Yes 

2. Will the text be provided in full or will editing need to be done??  

Answer:  No.  Some text may be provided, however the contractor is expected to write 
and edit the editorial content of the Annual Report. 

3. If photos are required will they be provided? 

Answer:  The Authority will provide as many of these photographs as possible but the 
contractor is required to supplement any needed photography. 

4. If photography is needed to be taken, is that to be part of this proposal or will MWAA 
need additional costs, proposals or suggestion of various photographers? 

Answer:  This Authority will award a firm fixed-price contract resulting from this 
solicitation. The contractor should be prepared to provide up to five days of 
photography including photography of the Board of Directors. 

5. If photos are provided, will there be photos to choose from or will they be selected 
ahead of time by MWAA? 

Answer:  We will work with the contractor to select the best photos to support the 
text. 

6. Please clarify if the "100% Local Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (LDBE) 
participation requirement" is defined as the winning proposer must be local. 

Answer:  The successful offeror must be a small business concern which is organized 
for profit and which is located within a 100-mile radius of Washington, DC's zero mile 
marker and certified by the Authority prior to award. 
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7. Please clarify if the proposer must be "100% Voluntary MBE/WBE" 

Answer:  No, the MBE/WBE participation percentage is voluntary.   

8. Firms located within a 100-mile radius and whose 3 year average gross receipts, 
including all affiliates, do not exceed the size standard(s) are eligible for 
consideration. Does this mean we must be within 100 miles and less than 7 million to 
be eligible for this project?  

Answer:  Prior to award the firm must be approved as an LDBE small business per the 
requirements established by the Authority’s Equal Opportunity Programs Department.  
The approved LDBE firm NAICS code designation determines the specific size 
standard.  

9. If we have a virtual office in DC does that qualify? 

Answer:  No.  The successful offeror must have a physical office within the100-mile 
radius of Washington, DC's zero mile marker.  

10. Who is the incumbent?  

Answer:  Herrmann Advertising Design. 

11. What was spent the last 3 years on the same project?  

Answer:  That information is not relevant to your proposal. 

12. What was the average turnaround time for design and printing for the previous 3 
years?  

Answer:  The average turnaround has been between three to four months. 

13. If the Prime is 100% WBE do we need to submit an Exhibit A?  

Answer: Yes.  

14. Please clarify, the Pricing Schedule is not to be submitted with the Technical Proposal 
January 7th. The Pricing Schedule is submitted at a later time only by the offerors that 
passed the Technical Proposal Evaluation and are contacted by MWAA to submit 
pricing?  

Answer: Yes. 

15. Does the Authority have a (compatibility format) preference in technology utilized for 
E-Book generation (i.e. Adobe, Flash, HTML 5, etc.)?  

Answer:  Flash and HTML 5 are acceptable. 
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16. Will the Authority accept team member experience references or subcontractor 
references as team project references for past performance?  

Answer:  Yes, if relevant. 

17. Will the Authority consider additional primary NAICS codes?  

Answer:  An LDBE firm adding services or goods during the term of its certification 
may request the Authority’s Equal Opportunity Programs Department to amend the 
LDBE certification to include these new services or goods, provided the firm also 
meets the applicable SBA size standards for these new services or goods, as noted. 

18. Does the Authority have a projected page count for final report? 

Answer:  No. The Report size varies from year to year.  You may use previous Reports 
posted on our website as a guide. 

19. Does the Authority have a preferred page size?  

Answer:  8.5” x 11” is currently used. 

20. Does MWAA have a standard designed envelope for mailing or does contractor need 
to provide design?  

Answer:  If we decide to print, we will work with the contractor to create the envelope. 

21. Can Photography licensed to MWAA for unlimited use, be restricted to no sub-
licensing by the Authority? 

Answer:  No.   

22. Presentation of early design concepts with typographic recommendations and at least 
three (3) photo options (Pricing 01). Are these photo options to be comp directions 
prior to scheduled photography (samples/style direction) or post photography 
options?  

Answer:  Pre-photography. 

 


